Questions and Answers about ETO/PTO with designer Doug Niles 6/98-8/98





Doug, 


I have been playing ETO since 87 and PTO since 91. They are both great games and we have all enjoyed them both. We have been looking for a way we can get some help with some of the confusion we have had over the years. Thanks for taking some of our questions.





Scott, It's always good to hear that people are enjoying these games. With the end of the TSR/SPI infrastructure, there's no good way to get answers to rules questions, so I will try to do justice to your 


queries.....





We are currently in an ETO game and we have some questions: 


1. Situation: Germany has a bunch of ships in a stack in a hex sea zone. Nearby, Germany has three fighter-bomber aircraft within range of their naval stack. The UK player has a large number of ships in port nearby, but not within interception range. Let’s assume that Germany has already had her Naval/Air phase (did not get intercepted, and it is the UK player Naval/Air turn.) 


1a. During friendly Naval/Air phase, can the UK player move ships one by one to the stack containing all my ships? This would only allow each plane to fly at only one ship each because they are only allowed one mission for the enemy naval phase.


1b. Or must all ships going to that hex go there together as a group? Meaning the Naval group would have to 


travel to all ports where it had to pick up other naval units. This would also allow all three planes to attack all ships in that intercepting group causing much more damage.





As a general rule, I require that all ships leaving one place and going to the same destination travel together. Other ships leaving from different starting locations can travel by their own paths.





2. Can you have a stack (group of Naval units) that traveled together in a hex and an individual naval unit (not part of the group) in the same hex?





Yes, but they are considered one stack for interception purposes.


 


3. During friendly Naval/Air phase, can different ships come from many different ports, travel individually to a hex, then combine there to begin searching for an enemy? (I know there is a clause that states if a stack moves through intercepting range ships from many different places can move their interception movement and combine and attack. But this is not what I am asking.)





Yes.





 4. Can you have a stack containing 6 ships, instead of breaking into 2 groups of three and searching, they search individually, meaning 1 ship searches by itself, the next ship searches, and so on? Even through you don’t get as many bonuses (because you are now searching by yourself), but sometimes more low odd rolls are better that one or two high probability rolls.





No...if you have at least 6 ships, you have to search as two stacks.





5. If ships are moving to a single hex, do they have to be picked up by a group get there? Or can they meet there? Meaning all ships going to one hex have to arrive there at the same time and then become a stack?





See question 1...and note, for interception purposes, when one ship is intercepted as it moves into a hex containing a big stack, every ship in that space is eligible to be attacked by the intercepting unit. And if 


it's naval interception, then the intercepting ships have to deal with the whole big fleet, not just the lone ship that moved into that space....














6. Surface raiders, can there be two raiders in the North Atlantic and treated as separate groups?





They are treated as one group...I know it's not entirely realistic, but this is one of those cases where playability won out. (Plus, it forces the Brit to make sure his 3-ship stacks are tough enough to handle all the raiders....)





7. After an amphibious mission, do STPs (or CL/DD combinations) stay in that hex or can they move away during end phase? 





They can move during the endphase, after the STP penalty for the assault is paid, of course. If they are in a port, however, they have to stay put (see below).





8. What about a transportation mission to a friendly hex? Do they stay in that hex or can they move away during end phase? If you transported to a port, the rules state that you cannot leave port.





You can't leave a port during the Endphase, so if you transported to a port, the STPs must stay there. From a coastal hex, of course, they can go to a friendly port during the Endphase.


 


11. How does U-boat movement work? If U-boat is hit and wants to go back to port? Does it leave during Naval and Air and then can be repaired during seasonal turn?





Sorry about this oversight in the rules...A damaged U-boat can return to port during the Endphase from any sea area. To move out from port, a U-boat can go to the north atlantic or convoy route in one naval/air 


phase. A U-boat in the NA area can move to the US Coast or South Atlantic area in one naval/air phase, but it can't have attacked that turn.


 


Thanks you very much!! 


Scott DeMonte 


sdemonte@cmq.com





No problem...I just got back from vacation last night, or I would have answered sooner. Incidentally, I assume from your questions that you are using the revised edition of ETO, published in 1990, correct? 


Good gaming! 


Doug Niles











Doug, 


Thanks for getting back with me about ETO/PTO. Yes, we are playing with the revised edition of ETO. I have a few more questions if you don't mind about the games, but first I like to find out if you are still making war games? Any future plans about releasing another WWII war game? A new revision of ETO or PTO? Both ETO/PTO are our groups favorite war games and we have played many others over the years (3rd Reich, WIF, Europa games FITE SE WF SF and a multitude of others) but we always come back to ETO and PTO. I think because they are very playable (moves quickly, and it really feels that you are put into situations where you have to make decisions like those 


that could have occurred in WWII) and the scale is detailed, but not too detailed where your stacks are 10 units high and turns take more than 6 hours! And the games play with a historical feel. Both games are very popular (and hard to find now) and thanks to the internet, I have been able to find others who enjoy your games. Too bad TSR didn't want to support ETO and PTO because they could be as popular as WIF (which gets lots of support). I have played WIF, including the new version, and I don't see what the hoopla is all about, but after discussions with several WIF players they all commented how much they liked ETO/PTO but unfortunately they considered it a "dead series". 


 


I'm sure you are tired of hearing me rant about your games, but it only seem right for the amount of fun (and fights!) you have given our group over the last years. All of our wives might not be so happy, but thanks again! 








Hi Scott,After all that nice stuff you wrote, how can I help but be delighted to answer your questions...but seriously, it sounds like you like the same things about the game that caused me to want to design 


it. I liked WIF and 3rd Reich, but wished they could do more, without getting to an unplayable level of detail. In short, I had the chance in ETO/PTO to design the games that I would most like to play. I haven't 


done any wargames in awhile, because game design/fiction writing is my profession, and there just isn't any market for paper-based wargames ( I'd love to do a US Civil War game loosely based on the ETO system, but it's just an idea percolating in the back of my mind And tell you and your friends' wives "thank you", for me...





Ok now my last 9 questions (sorry they are long... but after 10 years of playing, I am surprised there aren't more!).... 


1. We have had abuses in naval movement when it comes to avoiding air interception. For example, if I have 4 STPs in a foreign port that I want to supply by sea and they are in interception range of enemy aircraft, I would move them one by one to pick up supply and come back to the port so his plane can only intercept one and then it can not fly anymore. Its this allowed? 





I understand your example: ....when one ship is intercepted as it moves into a hex containing a big 


stack, every ship in that space is eligible to be attacked by the intercepting unit..... 





This will help stop abuses as long as your planes are able to reach the hex that the all the ships are moving to. Thereby able to intercept multiple ships when you choose, but if your interception range is somewhere in 


between the ports and the interception hex you will probably only be able to attack only one ship unless they are forced to travel together. Am I correct?





I think you are. Of course, you might be able to take an air offensive and plaster a bunch of STPs, but in real life it seems to be difficult, but not impossible, to totally close a sea supply route through air 


interdiction.


 


 2. During friendly Naval/Air phase, can different ships come from many different ports, travel individually to a hex, then combine there to begin searching for an enemy? You said this is correct, right? But ships that begin this naval phase together who want to move to this hex must move together, correct? Only single ships in different ports can travel individually to this hex. Am I understanding  this? The main point is that ships which are together at the beginning of this naval phase must travel together if moving to the same destination hex and that other ships from other locations can go to the same hex following the same criteria...right?





Yes, exactly.


 


3. Can a U-boat which is damaged during the strategic warfare phase move back to port during naval or end phase of the same turn? So what I mean is, can U-boats attack and move to port during the same monthly turn? 





I seem to recall that my friends and I play it that a U-boat can still return to port on a turn that it has attacked...I would allow it.





4. (Stupid question) I think we are playing this right, but I have to ask. During a friendly naval phase, a STP travels to port with a sea supply or a ground unit and a CA or BB accompanies him to port. Even though the STP has 


not dropped off the supply or unit yet, it is technically "in port" so safe from any naval ships sailing into port because there is a CA or BB in port with them, correct? 





Yes...and remember, there are no stupid questions, only stupid designers who write rules with holes you can drive a truck through....





5. Should U-boats be required to attack during Strategic Warfare turn? or at least some minimal attack? or can they just sit there not doing anything when UK for example have 8 stacks in the convoy box. The UK player gets 


angry that there is no way to get the U-boats if they refuse to attack.





They are not required to attack, and the UK player should just chill. After all, this means he's WINNING the U-boat war!





6. What about an air unit out of supply (In Africa, not able to trace to a permanent supply), how can you get him back in supply? For a ground unit the rules state that an unsupplied unit is brought in supply by being activated by an offensive, or getting attacked. If the plane cannot reach permanent supply with 2 hops it will always be out of supply unless it is on a port hex so that it can be shipped home to a permanent supply source. How do we handle this?





Note that an out of supply air unit can still do a few things, such as defend itself. I could see a "house rule" allowing an OOS air unit to make a 2-hop jump TOWARD a supply source or a port each turn, even if it 


can't reach the source on that turn; perhaps you could work this out with your fellow gamers....





 7. NOT IN RULES (Withdrawing from naval combat 9.6) You have all combinations listed of withdraws except: If one player withdraws all and the other player withdraws none. What ships fight the second round?





All ships fight the second round; the withdrawal, in effect, doesn't have any effect…





8. Who gets initiative between Finland and Russia during the winter war? And can Germany repair Finish troops even they are not allies yet?





As a "house rule", I tend to allow Germany to repair Finnish troops with German EPs; in fact, we play it as 1/2 of the normal EP cost. As to initiative, Finland goes when the Axis goes; Russia goes when the Allies 


go. A couple of other unofficial rules that I use in my games: (Use them at your own peril....) 





1) At least 1 month of the Winter War must be actual Winter Weather. 


2) If the Soviet Adventurism optional rule is used, Finnish neutrality cannot be violated after the winter war has been fought. If Finland is attacked, the Russian player must declare at the outset of hostilities whether the goal is to win the Winter war, or conquer Finland. The declaration is binding. 


3) During the Winter War, Russian units can cross the temporary border in Finland. Finland is not required to set up a unit in the national capital. 


4) During the Blitzkrieg bonus turn (for German attacks) the defending country gets NO bonus from constructed fortifications...i.e., it's as if they don't exist for any purpose, until the Blitz bonus is no longer in effect. 


5) For convoy escort stacks, the first 5 stacks need 8 ships per stack (as in the current rules), but the 6th stack requires 12 ships, the 7th 16 ships, etc.... 


6) An infantry unit on Standby status during the Movement phase can, instead of moving, destroy an installation in the same hex.





9. Thanks for the ETO errata listed in PTO, do you have any PTO errata you could give me?





I have a sheet of paper, but not a computer file. Can you get a fax? (send me your fax number, then.) Or send me your "snail mail" address, and I'll mail you a copy. (I'm curious, where are you writing from, 


anyway? I'm in southern Wisconsin, for what it's worth.....)























NOTE: I am posting the PTO errata on grognards the same time I am posting this.





Thanks for your time, answers and your creativity. 


Scott DeMonte 


sdemonte@cmq.com





My pleasure...have fun, and let me know how your games are going! 


Best, Doug Niles




















Doug, 


We are sorry to take up you time again, but we are desperate to get some "official rulings". We have stopped our game in progress and really can not continue until something is decided. We appreciate you going out of 


your way to answer these, and have agreed to play by your calls.





Scott, it's always enjoyable to think about the wargame in the morning before I start my real work, so I was glad to get, and to answer, your questions....





1. EMERGENCY RULING PLEASE 


Here is where we had to stop...It's Dec 41 Germany pushing had through the snow again (October Mud, November Winter) nearing Tula and Moscow. Hoepner attempts a breakthrough, he moves his armor the two breakthrough 


movement...STOP here is the problem...is it 2 movement or halved to 1 because of winter weather? (of course Germany says 2, Russia says 1) 





He gets 2 hexes of breakthrough movement; the weather effect on movement only limits the movement allowance printed on the countert.





2. EMERGENCY RULING PLEASE 


Next, the breakthrough attack is successful and the armor advances after the attack. It is time for the breakthrough movement....Hoepner has a rating of 3 and moves his three points of breakthrough movement...STOP AGAIN...or is Hoepner's breakthrough movement 3 or halved to 2 because of winter? (guess who says it is 3 and who says its 2) 





Hoepner gets 3 hexes...as you surmise below, so would Guderian, Rommel and Patton.





3. Its at this point that the Russian player has asked me to ask you this....rule 28.3 Breakthrough Movement, fourth paragraph, "Regardless of the General's rating, out of supply armor can move only one hex. In winter weather, armor can move no more than three hexes." What does this mean? and does this apply to supplied armor also?





The second sentence only applies to supplied armor, since out of supply (OOS) armor can only move 1 hex.





Does this include pre-attack breakthrough movement also? (Russian's Guess...or dream answer)





OOS armor can only move 1 hex in pre-attack move, and 1 hex of breakthrough movement.





Does this only apply to Breakthrough Movement, meaning Guderian and armor can only move 3 even though in good weather he could move 5 hexes? (My Guess)





Yup.








What exactly does that second sentence mean? My Russian player is very excited. Please explain. 





See above...the 2nd sentence applies to supplied armor, and refers to Breakthrough movement with a general.





4. Coastal Forts: When occupied by a land unit does it provide its 2 point protection just from sea (amphib) attack, or also from a land attack. 





Just from sea attack.





(British player question). If it does provide protection from a land attack only, why buy regular forts on coastal hexes, except if they are not occupied they can be destroyed by walking over them. Our house rule, until we get your decision is, if at least 1/2 of units are making a amphibious attack against the fort hex, the forts strength is included in the odds calculation, if under the 1/2 the fort provides no protection.





This is correct; the fort only defends against amphib attacks, but your example described above is considered an amphib.





5. Rail Question: (British player question) If he bombs out Italian rail completely, can any units (German, Italian, ect.) rail into Italy using German Rail? or vice-versa if he bombs out German rail. (I said yes...he did not like that answer) 





Unfortunately for him, you are right.





6. Rail Question: (British player question) Did you intend to let Germany's rail to extend to Norway? (if linked up through Leningrad) It aggravates him that I pick up a unit in Oslo and rail him to Italy. He hates my rail in Scandinavia, lets me react quickly to amphib attack.





Actually, yes...German rail can extend into Norway. I agree with the Ally that it's a little bogus here. (It's a rare circumstance...Germany must be kicking some serious booty!) I would suggest that Finland/Norway be subject to a variant of the Middle East Rail Restriction [31.5]...i.e. only 1 unit per turn can be railed into or out of there.





7. Last Question (Russian player) You can retreat through Zone if a friendly unit is in your path of movement, and you can use secondary advance to move through ZOC as long as a unit stays behind. But his question is, can you 


move a unit through ZOC? Now he understands that the rules are very clear about this, but his confusion comes from the rule stating "....ZOC does not extend over hex sides you could not enter..." does this mean technically 


you can not enter a hex already contain an enemy unit, because you could not "enter" an already occupied hex? Meaning there is no ZOC in that  hex? Therefore allowing a unit which is in ZOC by five surrounding hexes 


can move out of that hex as long as a unit stays in the surrounded hex, others can move back through a friendly unit. Correct? 





…the ZOC not extending into a "hex the unit could not enter" refers purely to terrain, not the 


presence of other units. (Armor unit's ZOC never extends into swamp, for example) 





More clarification on same question from Doug:


	


I think I understand, but as I said before, the "could not enter" phrase refers only to terrain, not the presence of units. ZOC does extend into hexes that contain enemy units; the presence of a friendly unit does not negate any of the effects of enemy ZOC, except as noted for secondary advance after combat. If I do understand the scenario you describe, it sounds as though the Russian player would like to consider a Russian unit to have the same effect on ZOC as a Russian fortifications...i.e. ZOC doesn't extend 


into forts, so you can march into and out of them regardless of enemy ZOC. A Russian unit in a German ZOC, however, offers no benefits to another Russian unit that wants to move into or out of that hex. 


I hope this clears it up, Doug





Doug, 


If I didn't need to bother you again I would not, but we need another ruling. I apologize and hope you understand, thanks again for being there to support your game.





No problem, Scott...Always glad to oblige.





NOTE: All Questions answered after last question. 


Our Question: (all basically the same question)


1.Bordeaux is an empty hex under German control. UK purchases a partisan unit and places the unit next to Bordeaux. During Naval and air phase UK brings 2 6-4 corps into the hex that the partisan unit occupies 


(partisan unit makes hex friendly) Another UK 6-4 corps moves to Bordeaux via STPs. During Offensive phase can the 2 6-4 corps debark in the now friendly hex while the 6-4 debarks in the Bordeaux hex and have all the infantry 


units attack the empty hex (the 1 point of intrinsic strength) together? (Because less than 1/2 of units are not making an ampib there is no -3 penalty against the attack) Is this correct? This attack can take place? 





2. I was under the impression that an ampib attack is defined as at least 1/2 of land strength is attacking from the sea, and that is the only time intrinsic strength can be attacked? 





3. I was also under the impression that units not making an ampib could not attack intrinsic strength. 





4. So I guess what we are asking is for the definition of an amphibious attack





5. To be defined an amphibious attack, I believed you have to suffer the -3 amphib penalty, because if you have more than 1/2 land forces that are not making an ampib attack, it is not considered an ampib attack. 





6. As you can see in our first example, the only way to get the UK player into Bordeaux on the same turn is by advancing after combat after attacking the intrinsic strength of an empty German hex with 12 points land and 


6 points by sea ....does this seem right to you? Can this be done legally? 





7. Would a costal fort lend protection to a 3-3 German in question #6 if both the costal fort and the 3-3 were located in Bordeaux. I don't think it would... 





Thanks for your ruling. As you can see we have been suddenly confused. We love your game (even through all our arguments...and boy do we ARGUE!) 


Scott�


I admit, this is a new one, and so far as I recall is not covered by the rules. (Partisons, I admit, have opened up a few cans o' worms in this game!) I would say that the instrinsic defense can only be attacked by the amphib assault units, and the same would apply to a vacant coastal fort. A German unit in Bordeaux could of course be attacked by the 2 UK 6-4 adjacent units, though I have to think the UK units would be out of supply! 


Your statement in #6 is not quite correct, incidentally. The partison unit could move into Bordeaux during the Movement (not Offensive) phase, and then the port is friendly for UK units to land 


there during the same Movement or Endphase. This is the sleaziest partisan tactic that I had previously heard of (alright, I admit, I've used it!) I would also be inclined to rule that even a coastal fort in 


Bordeaux could prevent this kind of capture. Well, thanks for keeping me on my toes. Talk to you soon, 


Doug




















Doug,


Thanks for clearing up the questions about amphibs last time we spoke, but your response has triggered another question. You said "The partison unit could move into Bordeaux during the Movement (not Offensive) 


phase, and then the port is friendly for UK units to land there during the same Movement or Endphase." Does this also mean that units can move first during movement and then rail units up to that new location? The hexes just taken during THIS movement phase? We always railed first and then moved so rail only extended as far as you got last turn, or how far you got during the previous offensive phase. 


Thanks, 


Scott





Actually, I kind of like the wrinkle you bring to rail movement--doing it first. However, I never thought of it, so it should not be assumed to be in the rules (unless you want to keep it there as a house rule).


Talk to you soon, 


Doug








Note: I will keep grognards updated with any new rules discussions in the future that I will have with Doug, and don’t forget to download the PTO errata, which until now did not exist. Thanks, enjoy ETO and PTO, I know I sure am…Questions, please email me. Or stop by http://www.consimworld.com/webx, multiplayer games, ETP/PTO for discussions.


Scott DeMonte


Sdemonte@cmq.com


